Development Control Committee

Tuesday, 20 April 2010

Present: Councillor Harold Heaton (Chair), Councillor Geoffrey Russell (Vice-Chair), Councillors Kenneth Ball, Julia Berry, Judith Boothman, Alistair Bradley, Henry Caunce, Mike Devaney, David Dickinson, Dennis Edgerley, Roy Lees, June Molyneaux, Simon Moulton, Mick Muncaster and Ralph Snape.

Officers: Jennifer Moore (Head of Planning), Alex Jackson (Senior Lawyer), Nicola Hopkins (Principal Planning Officer (Major Projects)) (and Tony Uren (Democratic and Member Services Officer).

Also in attendance: Councillors Terry Brown and Hasina Khan.

10.DC.147 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Christopher France and Keith Iddon.

10.DC.148 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

In accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council's Constitution and the Members' Code of Conduct, Councillor Julia Berry declared a prejudicial interest in respect of Planning Application 09/01016/COU considered at Minute 10.DC.150(a).

10.DC.149 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the last meeting of the Development Control Committee held on 30 March 2010 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Chair.

10.DC.150 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AWAITING DECISION

The Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy submitted reports on three applications for planning permission to be determined by the Committee.

RESOLVED – That the planning applications, as now submitted, be determined in accordance with the Committee's decisions as recorded below.

(a) 09/01016/COU - 225-227, Eaves Lane, Chorley PR6 0AG

(Councillor Julia Berry declared a prejudicial interest in the planning application and, while she remained in the meeting, she did not take part in the discussion or voting on the application).

(The Committee heard representations from the Ward representative, Councillor Terry Brown).

Application No: 09/01016/COU

Proposal: Conversion of retail units to form Doctors' Surgery -

Change of Use from A1 to D1

Location: 225-227 Eaves Lane, Chorley

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Kenneth Ball, seconded by Councillor Alistair Bradley, and subsequently **RESOLVED** that planning permission be refused for the following reason:

"The proposed change of use as a doctor's surgery is located within an area where there is limited parking and only short term on-street parking. There is no parking provided within the application site, resulting in longer distances to walk for the mobility impaired and less able patients. As there will be a high frequency of visitors to this expanded surgery the on-street short stay parking will not provide a suitable and capable solution and will result in longer travel distances that will for groups that need access to such facilities result in them being discouraged from visiting contrary to RSS Policy TR2 that requires disabled provision for such uses of 3 spaces and there is no justification in this case for a reduction.

(b) 10/00115/REMMAJ - Land formerly Radburn Works, Sandy Lane, Clayton-le-Woods

(The Committee heard representations from an objector to the planning application; a local resident with concerns at the proposed highway amendments; and the applicants' agent).

Application No: 10/00115/REMMAJ

Proposal: Reserved Matters Application for the erection of 62

two-storey dwelling houses with associated open

space, landscaping and infrastructure

Location: Land formerly Radburn Works, Sandy Lane, Clayton-

le-Woods

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Roy Lees, seconded by Councillor David Dickinson, and subsequently **RESOLVED**:

- (1) That reserved matters planning approval be granted, subject to the following conditions and the prior completion of a supplemental Section 106 Agreement:
- 1. The proposed development must be begun not later than two years from the date of this permission or not later than five years from the date of the outline planning permission (reference 08/01079/OUTMAJ)

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The approved plans are:

Plan Ref Received On Title: BHWL78/01 Rev S 1st April 2010 **Planning Layout** 01-11 Rev B **Refuse Vehicle Tracking** 1st April 2010 2H22 8th February 2010 2 Bed Mews 3LA2 Rev A 8th February 2010 3 Bed Detached 3PI2 Rev A 3 Bed Detached/ End Mews 8th February 2010 3RA2 Rev A 8th February 2010 3 Bed Detached/ End Mews

	4B02 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached
	4CA2 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached (Plot 62 only)
	4CA2 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached (Plots 25, 26,
	52, 53 and 56)	•	, , ,
	4CA2 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached Floor Plans
	4FB2 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached
	4HA2 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached (Plot 3 only)
	4HA2 Rev A	8th April 2010	4 Bed Detached (Plots 1 and
	2 only)	-	•
	4OR2 Rev A	8th February 2010	4 Bed Detached
	4PR2 Rev B	19th March 2010	4 Bed Detached
	5GA2 Rev C	19th March 2010	5 Bed Detached
	5GA2 Rev C	19th March 2010	5 Bed Detached Floor Plans
	5TA2 Rev A	8th February 2010	5 Bed Detached
	5TA2	8th February 2010	5 Bed Detached Floor Plans
		8th February 2010	Double Garage and Games
Room (Plots 53/54, 55 and 58 only)			
		8 th February 2010	Garage and Fence Details
	LDS-137-01A	19 th March 2010	Landscape Master Plan
	P.083.09.02 Rev A	8th February 2010	Arboricultural Implications
	P.083.09.01	8th February 2010	Tree Survey
	LDS-137-02	8th February 2010	Equipped Play Area
	BHWL78/04	8th February 2010	Site Location Plan
	BHWL78/02 Rev A	8th February 2010	Street Scenes
	BHWL78/03 Rev A	8th February 2010	Street Scenes
	01-10	25th March 2010	Proposed Section Plots 40,
	59, 56 & 54		

Reason: To define the permission and in the interests of the proper development of the site.

3. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in conformity with the proposed ground and building slab levels shown on the approved plans or as may otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority before any development is first commenced.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the amenities of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

- 6. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected by 1.2 metre high fencing as specified in paragraph 8.2.2 of British Standard BS5837:2005 at a distance from the tree trunk equivalent to the outermost limit of the branch spread, or at a distance from the tree trunk equal to half the height of the tree (whichever is further from the tree trunk), or as may be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No construction materials, spoil, rubbish, vehicles or equipment shall be stored or tipped within the area(s) so fenced. All excavations within the area so fenced shall be carried out by hand. Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP9 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.
- 7. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all external facing materials to the proposed buildings (notwithstanding any details shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

8. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour, form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

9. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the highway alterations to the site access with Sandy Lane have been completed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy No.TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until that part of the service road which provides access to it from the public highway has been constructed in accordance with plans which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy No.TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review

11. The surface water drainage scheme for the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted supplemental flood risk assessment prepared by Lees Roxburgh Ltd (Report number 103524 dated March 2010)

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding at the site and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS25: Development and Flood Risk.

12. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

13. The pedestrian and cycle improvements to Sandy Lane and Radburn Bridge, specified on the approved plans, shall be constructed and completed prior to the occupation of the dwellinghouses hereby permitted.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and in accordance with Policy TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

14. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted the further investigation works and any proposed remediation shall be carried out in accordance with the recommendations set out in the submitted Geo-Environmental Assessment Report prepared by Brownfield Solutions Ltd (reference AJH/C1307/865) and in accordance with a suitable remediation strategy. The further works shall include a complete gas monitoring programme to adequately characterise risks to the proposed end users from ground gases; installation of suitable gas protection measures (where required); investigation of the extent of hydrocarbons and of peat to identify removal or treatment as required; where the remedial strategy dictates import clean cover into garden and landscaping areas (600mm and 450mm respectively) and validation of cover system. The further works and suggested remedial measures recommended in Section 9 and 10 of the submitted report.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

15. Upon completion of the remediation works a validation report containing any validation sampling results shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

16. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out on the area of land affected until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an amendment to the Method Statement detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

17. No development shall take place until a programme of archaeological work has been implemented in accordance with a scheme of investigation which has previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The site is situated within an area of known archaeological interest and, as such, the site should be appropriately excavated and the remains recorded and in accordance with Policy Nos. HT11 and HT12 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

18. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted the vehicular access link through the car park of the Lord Nelson Public House shall cease to be used. Full details of the measures to be implemented to prevent vehicular access shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include details of the proposed pedestrian/ cycle link. The development thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure the acceptable development of the site and in accordance with Policy GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

19. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the predicted energy use of the development expressed in terms of carbon emissions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If no data specific to the application is available benchmark data will be acceptable. A schedule should include how energy efficiency is being addressed, for example, amongst other things through the use of passive solar design. It will be flexible enough to show the on-site measures to be installed and implemented so as to reduce carbon emissions by the figure set out in policy SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD at the time of the commencement of each individual plot by means of low carbon sources. Details shall be submitted for on-site measures recycling, implemented including rainwater/brown water implementation of sustainable urban drainage systems and the provision of storage space for recyclable waste materials and composting. No development shall commence until the scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the Climate Change Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional Spatial Strategy and Chorley Borough Council's Sustainable Resources DPD and Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

20. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Sustainability Statement. All dwellings commenced after 2010 will be required to meet Level 3, all dwellings commenced after 2013 will be required to meet Level 4 and all dwellings commenced after 2016 will be required to meet Level 6 of the Codes for Sustainable Homes. No dwelling to be constructed after 1 January 2011 shall commence until a Design Stage assessment and related certification has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that the proposed development will be constructed to achieve the relevant Code for Sustainable Homes level.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the Climate Change Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional Spatial Strategy and Chorley Borough Council's Sustainable Resources DPD and Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

21. No dwelling, commenced after 1 January 2011, shall be occupied until a Code for Sustainable Homes "Post Construction Stage" assessment has been carried out and a final Code Certificate has been issued certifying that the required Code Level and 2 credits under Issue Ene7 has been achieved and the certificate has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the Climate Change Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional Spatial Strategy and Chorley Borough Council's Sustainable Resources DPD and Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

22. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail which may have previously been submitted. The scheme shall indicate all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; detail any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of

development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped; and detail any changes of ground level or landform. Additionally the details shall include full details of the proposed landscaping along the northern boundary of the site with Barleyfield.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

23. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

- 24. Prior to the commencement of the development a scheme for the construction phase of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall cover:
- 1. The proposed route of the HGV/Delivery vehicles entering and exiting the site minimising the use of Radburn Bridge. The approved scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the access used for construction traffic is appropriate in highway safety terms and to ensure that disturbance resulting from deliveries does not adversely impact on the amenity of existing resident or highway safety.

RESOLVED – (2) That the Lancashire County Council be requested to reconsider the proposed highway amendments to Radburn Brow/Sandy Lane to be secured through a separate Section 278 Agreement with the Highways Authority, with a view to other possible alternative schemes that would deliver the required improvements to pedestrian facilities being examined.

(c) 09/00985/OUTMAJ - Chorley Motor Auction, Cottam Street, Chorley PR7 2DT

Application No: 09/00985/OUTMAJ

Proposed: Application for outline planning permission for the

erection of 15 affordable dwellings, following the

demolition of the existing commercial premises. Chorley Motor Auction, Cottam Street, Chorley

Decision:

Location:

It was proposed by Councillor Kenneth Ball, seconded by Councillor Ralph Snape, and subsequently RESOLVED that outline planning approval be granted, subject to the following conditions and the prior completion of an associated Section 106 Legal Agreement:

1. An application for approval of the reserved matters (namely scale, external appearance of the buildings and landscaping of the site) must be made to the Council before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission

and the development hereby permitted must be begun two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The approved plans are:

Plan Ref. Received On: Title:

09/120/P01 8th December 2009 Location Plan
09/120/P01 Rev B 30th March 2010 Proposed Site Plan
15th February 2010 Topographical Survey

Reason: To define the permission and in the interests of the proper development of the site.

3. The application for approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building slab levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site), notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans. The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality, in the interests of the amenities of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail which may have previously been submitted. The scheme shall indicate all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; detail any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped; and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy No.GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season

with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

8. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all external facing materials to the proposed buildings (notwithstanding any details shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

9. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour, form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995, (Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A to E), or any Order amending or revoking and re-enacting that Order, no alterations or extensions shall be undertaken to the dwellings hereby permitted, or any garage, shed or other outbuilding erected (other than those expressly authorised by this permission).

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

11. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the bat mitigation proposals set out within Section 5 of the Bat Survey undertaken by ERAP Consultant Ecologists dated 30th January 2010.

Reason: To ensure the continued protection and enhancement of bats. In accordance with Government advice contained in PPS9 and Policy EP4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

12. No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface water drainage arrangements have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing. No part of the development shall be occupied until the approved surface water drainage arrangements have been fully implemented.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to prevent flooding and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS25: Development and Flood Risk.

13. Prior to the commencement of the development a report to identify any potential sources of contamination on the site and where appropriate, necessary remediation measures, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report should include an initial desk study, site walkover and risk assessment. If the initial study identifies the potential for contamination to exist on site, the scope of a further study must then be agreed in writing with Local Planning Authority and thereafter undertaken including details of the necessary remediation measures. The development shall thereafter only be carried out following the remediation of the site in full accordance with the measures stipulated in the approved report.

Reason: In the interests of safety and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control.

14. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an amendment to the Method Statement detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control.

15. The application for approval of Reserved Matters shall demonstrate and provide full details of how the design and layout of the buildings will withstand climate change in accordance with the submitted Sustainability Statement prepared by Lawson Margerison Partnership Ltd received 8th December 2009 and the Sustainability Statement Revision A dated 9th March 2010. The approved details shall be fully implemented and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In accordance with Government advice contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 and in accordance with Policies EM16 and EM17 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy and Policy SR1 of Chorley Borough Council's Adopted Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document and Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

16. The application for approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by a Design Stage assessment and related certification demonstrating that the proposed development will be constructed to achieve the relevant Code for Sustainable Homes level. All dwellings commenced after 1st January 2010 will be required to meet Code Level 3, all dwellings commenced after 1st January 2013 will be required to meet Code Level 4 and all dwellings commenced after 1st January 2016 will be required to meet Code Level 6. In accordance with Policy SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD, renewable or low carbon energy sources must be installed to reduce the predicted carbon emissions of the development by at least 15% (increasing to 20% from 2015). To demonstrate that this has been achieved, the Design Stage certification must show that the proposed development will achieve 2 credits within Issue Ene 7: Low or Zero Carbon Technologies. The approved details shall be fully implemented and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In accordance with Government advice contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 and in accordance with Policies EM16 and EM17 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy and Policy SR1 of Chorley Borough Council's Adopted Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document and Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

17. No dwelling shall be occupied until a Code for Sustainable Homes 'Post Construction Stage' assessment has been carried out and a final Code Certificate has been issued certifying that the required Code Level and 2 credits under Issue Ene7 has been achieved and the certificate has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In accordance with Government advice contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 and in accordance with Policies EM16 and EM17 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy and

Policy SR1 of Chorley Borough Council's Adopted Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document and Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

- 18. The application for approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by a scheme and programme for the site enabling and construction phase of the development. The scheme and programme shall cover:
- 1. Site/construction access points for each phase of development and mechanisms of limiting access from Cottam Street.
- 2. Site compound and contractor parking and management of contractors parking.
- 3. Construction operating hours including deliveries and site construction staff. The approved scheme and programme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: to ensure the access used for construction traffic is appropriate in highway safety terms and to ensure that noise and disturbance resulting from hours of operation and delivery does not adversely impact on the amenity of existing residents.

10.DC.151 PLANNING APPEALS AND DECISIONS - NOTIFICATION

The Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy presented a report giving notification of one appeal that had been lodged against the refusal of planning permission and an application that had been withdrawn from the Lancashire County Council.

RESOLVED – that the report be noted.

10.DC.152 PLANNING APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DIRECTOR OF PARTNERSHIPS, PLANNING AND POLICY IN CONSULTATION WITH THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee received, for information, reports listing five applications for Category 'B' development proposals which had been determined by the Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy, following consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee on 30 March and 7 April 2010.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

10.DC.153 PLANNING APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY DIRECTOR OF PARTNERSHIPS, PLANNING AND POLICY UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

The Committee received, for information, a schedule listing the remainder of the planning applications determined by the Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy under delegated powers between 18 and 30 March 2010.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

10.DC.154 CHAIR'S THANKS

The Chair thanked all the Committee members and Officers for their support and contribution to the work of the Development Control Committee over the past municipal year.

Chair